
 

ROY CITY  
 
Roy City Council Agenda 
April 5, 2016 – 6:00p.m. 
Roy City Council Chambers 
5051 South 1900 West 

 
Moment of Silence and Pledge of Allegiance: Councilmember Yeoman 
 
1. Approval of March 15, 2016 City Council Minutes  
 
2. Swearing in of New Roy City Police Officers  
 
3. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-12 Approving an Additional Crossing Guard Position  
 
4. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-13 Amending the Personnel Policy Manual regarding Police 

Department Uniform Allowance  
 
5. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-14 Temporarily Suspending the Roy City Master Police 

Officer Program  
 
6. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-16 Designating Roy City West Park as an Area Where 

Orders to Disperse are Authorized and Gang Loitering is Prohibited  
 
7. Request for Approval of an Alcoholic Beverage License for Rayka Food Mart, Located at 3971 

South 1900 West 
 
8. Discussion of Potential Acquisition of Property for a Roy City Cemetery 
 
9.  Discussion of Website Redesign Proposals  
 
10. Survey Update 
 
11. City Managers Report 
 

12. Public Comments  
 

13. Mayor and Council Report 
 
14. Adjourn 
 

 In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing auxiliary communicative aids and services 
for these meetings should contact the Administration Department at (801) 774-1020 or by email: 
admin@royutah.org at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
Certificate of Posting 

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in 
a public place within the Roy City limits on this 1st day of April 2016. A copy was also provided to the Standard 
Examiner and posted on the Roy City Website on the 1st day of April, 2016. 
         AMY MORTENSON, 
         ROY CITY RECORDER 
Visit the Roy City Web Site @ www.royutah.org 
Roy City Council Agenda Information – (801) 774-1020 

mailto:admin@royutah.org
http://www.royutah.org/


MINUTES OF THE MARCH 15, 2016, ROY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

1. Approval of minutes for the February 25, 2016, Special City Council Meeting and 
March 1, 2016 
 

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 16-11 declaring certain property as surplus and 
authorizing its sale 
 

3. Consideration Ordinance No. 16-2 establishing Title 13 of the Roy City Municipal 
Code as the City’s Sign Ordinance 
 

4. Swearing in of Mike  Howard as a Roy City Police Officer 
 

5. Consideration of a request for preliminary approval of the Lee Subdivision, a two 
lot commercial subdivision located at approximately 1770 West Riverdale Road 
(5300 South) 
 

6. Consideration a request for approval of a conditional use for Jamestown, a multi-
family residential development located at approximately 5000 South 1700 West 
 

7. Discussion regarding the Roy City Board of Adjustment 
 

8. Discussion regarding improvements to Roy City State roads 
 

9. City Manager’s Report 
 

10. Public comments 
 

11. Mayor and Council reports 
 

12. Adjourn 



Minutes of the Roy City Council Meeting held March 15, 2016, at 6:00 p.m. in the City 
Council Room of the Roy City Municipal Building. 
 
The meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting designated by resolution.  Notice of the 
meeting was provided to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours in advance.  A copy 
of the agenda was posted. 
 
The following members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Dave Tafoya   City Manager Andy Blackburn 
Councilwoman Marge Becraft   City Attorney Clint Drake 
Councilman Bob Dandoy    Secretary Michelle Drago 
Councilman Brad Hilton    Youth City Council Garrett MacArthur 
Councilwoman Karlene Yeoman 
 
Excused: Mayor Willard Cragun 
 
Also present were: Carl Merino, Police Chief; Amy Mortenson, City Recorder; Ross 
Oliver, Public Works Director; Steve Parkinson, Planner; Cathy Spencer, Management 
Services Director; Jake Hudson; Amy Web; Tristen Webb; David Webb; F. Lee; May Kei 
Lee; Samantha Tilton; Ernest Rowley; Taylor Williams; Hayden Tulls; Katana Sellers; 
Ronnie Olsen; Sienna Alejandre; Mike Howard; Michelle Howard; Chase Howard; and 
Casyn Howard. 
 
Moment of Silence:  Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya 
 
Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE FEBRUARY 25, 2016, SPECIAL CITY 

COUNCIL MEETING AND MARCH 1, 2016 

Councilwoman Becraft moved to approve the minutes of February 25, 2016, and 
March 1, 2016, as written. Councilman Hilton seconded the motion. Council 
members Becraft, Dandoy, Hilton, Tafoya, and Yeoman voted “aye.” The motion 
carried. 

2. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 16-11 DECLARING CERTAIN 
PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING ITS SALE 

Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya stated that the Public Works Department had provided a list of 
equipment that had exceeded its useful life and asked that the Council authorize its 
sale. 

Councilman Hilton moved to approve Resolution No. 16-11 declaring certain 
property as surplus and authorizing its sale. Councilman Dandoy seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was taken: Council members Becraft, Tafoya, Dandoy, 
Yeoman, and Hilton voted “aye.” The motion carried. (Copy filed for record). 



Roy City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
3. CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 16-2 ESTABLISHING TITLE 13 OF THE 

ROY CITY MUNIBIPAL CODE AS THE CITY’S SIGN ORDINANCE 

Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya stated that the City Council had discussed the proposed Sign 
Ordinance in a few Council meetings and in a work session. 

Steve Parkinson stated that he had made the adjustments the Council discussed during 
its work session. 

Councilwoman Yeoman stated that some of the convenience stores in Roy had poles 
with permanent places for signs. Would those be considered temporary signs? Mr. 
Parkinson said the current sign regulations prohibited signs on poles. 

Councilman Dandoy complimented Mr. Parkinson and the Planning Commission for a 
nice job. The new Sign Ordinance read well and defined what the City needed to do. 

Councilwoman Yeoman asked if Mr. Parkinson still planned to contact each business 
individually. Mr. Parkinson said the City had 300 commercial businesses. Each one 
would be contacted by himself, the Building Official, or the Code Enforcement Officer. 
They would explain the new sign regulations and its implementation date. 

Councilman Tafoya suggested that the new Sign Ordinance take effect on July 1st, 
which was the start of the fiscal year. Mr. Parkinson felt that would give the staff 
sufficient time to meet with each business and for the businesses to come into 
compliance. 

Councilwoman Yeoman asked that the staff let the Council members know if the 
businesses had any concerns so they could be prepared to respond when they were 
contacted. 

Councilman Dandoy moved to approve Ordinance No. 16-2 establishing Title 13 
of the Roy City Municipal Code as the City’s Sign Ordinance with an effective date 
of July 1, 2016. Councilman Hilton seconded the motion. A roll call vote was 
taken: Council members Hilton, Dandoy, Yeoman, Tafoya, and Becraft voted 
“aye.” The motion carried.  (Copy filed for record). 

4. SWEARING IN OF MIKE  HOWARD AS A ROY CITY POLICE OFFICER  

Police Chief Carl Merino was placed to announce that the Police Department had filled 
one of three available positions with Mike Howard. Officer Howard was a 15-year 
veteran from Layton City. Both Clint Drake and Deputy Chief Perry were acquainted 
with him. The City was very pleased to have him. 

Mike Howard was sworn in by City Recorder Amy Mortenson. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya asked Officer Howard to introduce his family.  

Mike Howard introduced his wife Michelle and sons Chase and Casyn. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
The Council welcomed Mike Howard to the Roy family. 

5. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FOR PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF LEE’S 
SUBDIVISION, A TWO LOT COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT 
APPROXIMATELY 1770 WEST RIVERDALE ROAD (5300 SOUTH) 

Steve Parkinson stated that the City had received a request for preliminary approval of 
Lee’s Subdivision. Lee’s Subdivision was located at 1770 West Riverdale Road and 
contained two lots for the Oriental Market and the HiFi Shop. About ten months ago, 
Oriental Market caught fire. The owner wanted to divide the property into two separate 
lots before rebuilding. Mr. Parkinson explained that there wasn’t a minimum lot size or 
width in the commercial zone. However, each lot contained 29,000 square feet which 
was sufficient for the building and required parking. The Planning Commission held a 
public hearing on March 8th and recommended that the Council grant preliminary 
approval subject to the conditions recommended by the Development Review 
Committee. 

Councilwoman Yeoman moved to grant preliminary approval of Lee’s 
Subdivision, a two lot commercial subdivision located at approximately 1770 
West Riverdale Road (5300 South) based on the staff’s findings and subject to the 
conditions recommended by the Development Review Committee and Planning 
Commission. Councilwoman Becraft seconded the motion. Council members 
Becraft, Dandoy, Hilton, Tafoya, and Yeoman voted “aye.” The motion carried. 

6. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE 
FOR JAMESTOWN, A MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LOCATED 
AT 5000 SOUTH 1750 WEST 

Steve Parkinson stated that the City had received a request for approval of a conditional 
use for Jamestown, a multi-family development located at 5000 South 1750 West. The 
site was currently zoned R-4 and was actually large enough to have a density of seven 
units. However, the applicant could only fit six units on the site. The existing home was 
recently subdivided from the vacant portion. The site plan met every aspect of the 
Zoning Ordinance, except for those listed in the DRC report. Those exceptions could 
easily be accomplished. The Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 8th. 
The DRC and Planning Commission recommended that the Council approve the 
conditional use subject to the conditions listed in the staff report. 

Councilman Dandoy stated that the issue with the sewer had been resolved, but there 
were seemed to be a lot of conditions associated with the proposal. Would there be any 
problems? Mr. Parkinson did not feel there were any conditions the applicant couldn’t 
comply with. 

Councilman Dandoy stated that 1750 West was used as a staging area for the Roy 
Days parade. Mr. Parkinson said that during the public hearing the neighbors expressed 
concern about their lack of access during the parade. Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya 



Roy City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 
empathized with the inconvenience experienced by the property owners, but the parade 
was only one day a year. 

Steve Parkinson stated that the proposal only contained six units. This was an area that 
already had many multi-family units. 

Councilman Hilton moved to approve a conditional use for Jamestown, a multi-
family development located at 5000 South 1750 West, based on the staff’s 
findings and subject to the conditions recommended by the staff and Planning 
Commission. Councilwoman Yeoman seconded the motion. Council members 
Becraft, Dandoy, Hilton, Tafoya, and Yeoman voted “aye.” The motion carried. 

7. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE ROY CITY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Councilman Dandoy stated that the State of Utah legally required the City to have some 
type of appeal process for land use issues. Roy City’s Zoning Ordinance called for a 
Board of Adjustment consisting of five people with two alternates. In conversations with 
the City, he had learned that there had not been a need for a Board of Adjustment for 
thirteen years. As a result, the City did not have anyone assigned to the Board of 
Adjustment. 

Councilman Tafoya stated that the City got rid of the Board of Adjustment about fifteen 
years ago because there wasn’t a need for it. Yes, the City should have one set up, but 
appeals could go to district court. 

Andy Blackburn stated that during the fourteen years he had worked for the City no one 
had filed an appeal. Both he and Clint Drake felt appeals should be handled by a 
hearing officer. 

Councilman Hilton stated that last summer Clint Drake had suggested that the Board of 
Adjustment be replaced by a hearing officer. He thought the Council was in favor of that 
change. 

Clint Drake, City Attorney, stated that the Council did talk about appointing a hearing 
officer. The Zoning Ordinance needed to be changed from a Board of Adjustment to a 
hearing officer. 

Councilman Dandoy stated that in order for the City to be compliant with its own 
ordinance, the City either needed to appoint five members to the Board of Adjustment or 
amend the ordinance and appoint a hearing officer. The City would have to identify an 
individual who was not an employee of the City or an elected official. The public could 
then know that there was an appeal process available. He asked if the Council needed 
to take a vote. 

Clint Drake stated that this was a discussion item. He just needed some direction from 
the Council to move forward. He suggested that the City allocate some funds to pay the 
appeal officer so the City could get a better pool of applicants. The funds would 



Roy City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2016 
Page 5 
 
 
reimburse the officer as the appeal process could be a little bit time consuming. The 
savings over appointing and training an entire board were significant. 

Councilman Tafoya understood that in the appeal process, the City Council did not have 
the final say. The final decision was made by the hearing officer. Clint Drake said that 
was correct. If an applicant did not like the answer from the hearing officer, he could file 
an appeal with the district court. 

Andy Blackburn felt that the ordinance should authorize the City Manager to appoint the 
hearing officer. He wanted to make sure the hearing officer understood the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

Steve Parkinson stated that the Board of Adjustment was part of the Zoning Ordinance. 
A change in the appeal process should be considered by the Planning Commission. 

The City Council agreed that Zoning Ordinance should be changed. They asked the 
Planning Commission to discuss the proposed change and make a recommendation 
and the staff to prepare the amendment. 

8. DISCUSSION REGARDING IMPROVEMENTS TO ROY CITY STATE ROADS 

Councilman Dandoy stated that 2016 would be an interesting year for the City. UDOT 
would be making safety changes to 5600 South, repaving 5600 South, and replacing 
the intersection of 3500 West Midland Drive with a cul-de-sac. He wanted to make sure 
the City was aware of and receiving updates on those projects. 

Councilman Dandoy stated that the City was experiencing a lot of traffic on the main 
State roads in the City – 3500 West, 5600 South, and 1900 West. The report from the 
Leakage Study said there were 25,000 cars a day on 5600 South and about the same 
amount on 3500 West. At certain times of the day those roads were parking lots, and 
the City struggled. He did not know how many incidents, or accidents, were due to the 
congestion. Based on UDOT’s projections, the City would not see relief on 3500 West 
or 5600 South for years. The City might see some activity on 3500 West/Midland Drive 
around 2018 as part of a phased timeline. The traffic on 3500 West was atrocious at 
certain times of the day. It needed to be a four-lane road. He felt the City had to find a 
solution. 

Councilman Dandoy stated that UDOT’s Phase 2 for 5600 South could stretch all the 
way to 2034. That was a lot of time Roy City would be facing congestion, and it was 
congested today. The growth projection for West Haven and Hooper over the next thirty 
years was for both to become larger than Roy. Roy currently had a population of 
39,000. The mass growth taking place in the community was west of Roy City. Roy City 
was between the growth and the freeway, the retail shopping in Riverdale, and Hill AFB. 
The main artery that ran through Roy was 5600 South. He did not feel the City could 
survive another twenty years without some plan to widen 5600 South. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2016 
Page 6 
 
 
Councilman Dandoy stated that on March 29th, the City was invited to a meeting with 
UDOT. He felt the City would well represented by the Mayor, City Manager, and Public 
Works Director. The City needed to open a dialogue with UDOT about setting a new 
date to address 5600 South. It needed to be sooner than twenty years because of the 
congestion the City was experiencing. He felt the way to manage the situation was for 
the City to point out its needs to UDOT and to apply pressure. The City had to make 
sure that the arteries were managed effectively. It was critical for UDOT to understand 
that twenty years from now was not acceptable; eight or ten years would be. The City 
had to start driving the train in order to keep the arteries clean. 

Councilwoman Yeoman asked how the City had worked with UDOT in the past. Had 
UDOT worked with the City? If the City opened up a dialogue would it go anywhere?  

Councilman Hilton stated that UDOT was not an organization to be told how, when, or 
where to do things. If the City put too much pressure on UDOT, its projects would be 
moved to their bottom of their list. He agreed the City should bring the facts put together 
by the Public Works Director to the attention of UDOT. They were eye opening. UDOT 
needed to know that 5600 South would be a problem sooner than twenty years. He felt 
the City needed to include its State legislators. They could do the pushing. 

Clint Drake stated that he met with all of the legislators representing Roy City after the 
legislative session. They agreed they needed to work together to address the traffic 
issues. The City would be getting a new senator. There was a good possibility the new 
senator would be from Roy. He had been included in the conversations as well. The 
legislators understood that the traffic situation was important to the City. He suggested 
that the Council members reach out to the legislators as well. UDOT would listen to the 
legislators more than it would listen to the City staff. The staff would continue to do what 
it could. 

Councilman Tafoya stated that the State Legislature appropriated the funds. The City 
had to approach this smartly and cautiously. He pointed out the success the 
neighborhood around Roy Elementary had in getting help with the crosswalk in front of 
the school. They approached UDOT in a nice professional manner. They did not attack. 

Andy Blackburn stated that UDOT presented a study to the City about six months ago. 
They really didn’t want to expand 5600 South. The City’s response had been that 
something needed to be done about the congestion. 

Councilman Dandoy felt UDOT recognized there were challenges on 5600 South. It 
bothered him that it had taken a couple of serious incidents before UDOT woke up 
about the crosswalk. He felt momentum was gained from serious incidents. The City 
needed to be a little more proactive. He agreed the City needed to be cautious and 
professional but forceful too. The City needed to have the facts to drive the train.  

Councilman Tafoya felt movement would start if the legislators from the north formed a 
power block. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2016 
Page 7 
 
 
Ross Oliver, Public Works Director, stated that 4000 South from Midland Drive to 5100 
West would be widened to five lanes this summer to help bring people up from West 
Haven and Hooper. 

Councilman Dandoy stated that the residents in Roy were starting to use the backroads 
to move around the City rather than using State roads. Such traffic movements put wear 
and tear on the City roads. He felt the dialogue needed to be opened with UDOT. He 
asked that the City prepare for the meeting with UDOT on March 29th. The City needed 
to indicate that it wanted to start looking at solutions for the State arteries. 

9. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

Andy Blackburn, City Manager, reported that: 

• The City had applied for a lot of grants in the last year. It had received a 
$250,000 Community Development Block grant for the Hal Vern Subdivision 
area; a $150,000 RAMP Grant for the first phase of North Park; and an $8,000 
Art and Community Council grant. The City had not heard anything from Wasatch 
Front Regional Council, but it was still optimistic. The City would be applying for a 
$75,000 Safe Schools Grant to fund curb, gutter, and sidewalk in the 4000 South 
1900 West area. 

• The attorney had prepared the ordinance and public notices for the annexation. 
After Clint Drake had reviewed them, they could be printed in the newspaper. He 
would be meeting with the City’s legal counsel next week. If everything looked 
good, the notices should be mailed after the next Council meeting. Councilman 
Dandoy felt some would find the annexation unpopular. Mr. Blackburn said there 
were some who were excited to be annexed into Roy. 

• The City would be starting the roundabout on 4800 South on May 1st. It needed 
to be done before Roy Days. 
  

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were none. 

11. MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

Garrett MacArthur, Youth City Council, stated that track, baseball, and softball had 
started. Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya reported that the Beeli girls had made it to state on the 
debate team. 

Councilwoman Yeoman stated that she would not be able to attend the Utah League of 
Cities and Towns. 

Councilman Hilton stated that he had received a call from a citizen regarding the 
construction work on 6000 South. The construction included a horizontal cut across 
6000 South. The cut had been repaired, but it had dipped. When large trucks hit the dip, 



Roy City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2016 
Page 8 
 
 
it caused a reverberation that could be felt in the adjacent homes. The vibration was 
quite disturbing. The resident asked that the dip be fixed. Ross Oliver, Public Works 
Director, said the City would address it when the batch plant opened on April 1st. Andy 
Blackburn stated that the City should be receiving more money for roads due to the 
increased gas tax and Proposition One. The City would be able to do more with roads 
than it had in the past. 

Councilman Dandoy updated the Council on the survey. Weber State anticipated having 
a draft survey ready for the administration and Council to critique in two weeks. The 
survey would be available in English and Spanish. It would be nice if the Youth Council 
could add something to the survey. The target date was the last of April or first of May. 
The survey would be conducted across the City.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Tafoya reminded Council members to turn in their Weber Human 
Services questionnaire to Amy Mortenson by Friday. 

Councilwoman Becraft reported that she ready to move forward with the Arts Council. 
She asked the Council to let her know if they had any suggestions. Councilman Hilton 
stated Nina Doxey, a teacher at Roy High School, had expressed an interest. Mayor 
Pro-Tem Tafoya asked that the City post a notice regarding openings on the Arts 
Council on the City’s website. 

12. ADJOURN 

Councilwoman Becraft moved to adjourn at 6:42 p.m. Councilman Dandoy 
seconded the motion. Council members Becraft, Dandoy, Hilton, Tafoya, and 
Yeoman voted “aye”. 

 
       ________________________________ 
       Dave Tafoya 
Attest:       Mayor Pro-Tem 

 
__________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson 
Recorder  



OATH OF OFFICE 
STATE OF UTAH 

I,  ,  having been appointed to the office of
Print Name 

do solemnly swear or affirm that I will support, obey and defend the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of this State, and 

that I will discharge the duties of my office with fidelity. 

Signature 

State of Utah, 

County o f  

Subscribed and sworn to before me this   day of   , 20 

*Person Administering Oath

 Title 

*Utah Code § 78B-1-142: “Every court, every judge, clerk and deputy clerk of any court, every justice, every notary

public, and every officer or person authorized to take testimony in any action or proceeding, or to decide upon

evidence, has the power to administer oaths or affirmations.”

File oath by sending to: Oath of Office, Utah State Archives, 346 Rio Grande, Salt Lake City, UT, 84101 

Andres Olavarrieta

Police Officer 

Weber 

5th                        April                                 16

City Recorder 



OATH OF OFFICE 
STATE OF UTAH 

I,  ,  having been appointed to the office of
Print Name 

do solemnly swear or affirm that I will support, obey and defend the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of this State, and 

that I will discharge the duties of my office with fidelity. 

Signature 

State of Utah, 

County o f  

Subscribed and sworn to before me this   day of   , 20 

*Person Administering Oath

 Title 

*Utah Code § 78B-1-142: “Every court, every judge, clerk and deputy clerk of any court, every justice, every notary

public, and every officer or person authorized to take testimony in any action or proceeding, or to decide upon

evidence, has the power to administer oaths or affirmations.”

File oath by sending to: Oath of Office, Utah State Archives, 346 Rio Grande, Salt Lake City, UT, 84101 

Robert Jackson 

Police Officer 

Weber 

5th                     April                                 16

City Recorder 



OATH OF OFFICE 
STATE OF UTAH 

I,  ,  having been appointed to the office of
Print Name 

do solemnly swear or affirm that I will support, obey and defend the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of this State, and 

that I will discharge the duties of my office with fidelity. 

Signature 

State of Utah, 

County o f  

Subscribed and sworn to before me this   day of   , 20 

*Person Administering Oath

 Title 

*Utah Code § 78B-1-142: “Every court, every judge, clerk and deputy clerk of any court, every justice, every notary

public, and every officer or person authorized to take testimony in any action or proceeding, or to decide upon

evidence, has the power to administer oaths or affirmations.”

File oath by sending to: Oath of Office, Utah State Archives, 346 Rio Grande, Salt Lake City, UT, 84101 

Stuart Hackworth 

Police Officer

Weber

5th                        April        16

City Recorder 



RESOLUTION NO. 16-12 
A Resolution of the Roy City Council Approving an Additional Crossing Guard Position  

 
 
WHEREAS, Roy City Currently has 27 Crossing Guard positions approved by the City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Utah Law requires crossing guards at various intersections for safety reasons; and 
 
WHEREAS, according to Utah law, 5600 South 2100 West is an intersection that requires a 
Crossing Guard; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Roy City Council and its citizens that an additional 
Crossing Guard be located at 5600 South 2100 West; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Roy Police Department desires to establish an additional Crossing Guard position 
to enhance the safety of Roy City citizens.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Roy City Council that an additional Crossing Guard 
position be created and opened to accept applications, when available. 
 
Approved and adopted this 5th day of April, 2016 
 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Willard S. Cragun, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Amy Mortenson, Recorder 
 
 

Councilwoman Becraft   

Councilman Dandoy 

Councilman Hilton   

Councilman Tafoya   

Councilwoman Yeoman  

 



ROY CITY 
Job Description 

 
GENERAL PURPOSE 
 
Performs routine duties as needed to assure safe crossing of school children and the general 
public at intersections and other road crossings. 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED 
 
Works under the general supervision of the SRO Sergeant and Crossing Guard Liaison. 
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 
 
Prepares crossing zones; observes road traffic to determine the best timing for road crossings; 
admits children and pedestrians into designated crossing locations; escorts children and 
pedestrians as needed to assure safe crossings.  Monitors behavior of children and educates 
children regarding traffic safety as appropriate.  Observes general activity while on duty to 
detect suspicious behaviors; reports such observations. May prepare various reports related to 
work time and work activities.   
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
1. High school diploma or equivalent required. Must demonstrate an aptitude or ability to 

perform above and related duties; and sufficient experience to demonstrate a working 
knowledge of practices and procedures associated with above duties. Must have valid 
drivers license; must be 18 years of age.   

 
 
2. Work Environment: 
 

This position requires driving, walking, standing, reaching, and carrying.  Essential 
functions require talking, hearing, and seeing.  Must be able to cope with extreme 
weather conditions such as wind, rain, heat, and cold.  Hazards include light to heavy 
vehicular traffic and inattentive drivers. 

 

Title:  School Crossing Guard                     Code:                      
  
Division: Operations     Effective Date:      07/2006 
 
Department: Police      Last Revised:         
 



Resolution No. 16-13 
A Resolution of the Roy City Council Amending the Roy City Personnel Policy  

and Procedure Manual For Uniform Allowance  
 
Whereas, certain positions throughout Roy City are required to wear a City approved uniform as 
specified in departmental policy; and 
 
Whereas, a primary purpose of the uniform is to readily identify a City employee to the public; 
and  
 
Whereas, uniforms shall be maintained in a neat and clean condition so as to bring credit to the 
employee and to the City; and 
 
Whereas, Roy City currently provides an allowance to assist with the cost of the uniforms for 
certain employees; and  
 
Whereas, Section 1206 of the Roy City Personnel Policy and Procedure Manual outlines the 
payment of the uniform allowance; and 
 
Whereas, the Roy City Council has received input and determined it would be appropriate to 
change the amount provided to newly hired Police Officers.   
 
Now Therefore, be it Resolved that the Roy City Personnel Policy and Procedures Manual Section 
1206 Uniform Allowance is amended, in part, as follows: 
 
1206* Uniform Allowance 
 
Except for Police officers, eligible newly hired employees in a department listed above are eligible 
to receive a uniform allowance as of their hire date. The amount will be pro-rated based upon the 
number of half months employed in that semi-annual period, and will be included on the 
employee’s first regular pay check. (Example: An employee hired during the first half of March 
would receive 4/6ths of the semi-annual amount. An employee hired after the 15

th 
of the month 

would only receive one-half of that month’s allowance.)  
 
Due to the high cost of police uniforms, newly hired police officers will have their uniform 
allowance pro-rated in the amount required for them to purchase two uniforms and one jacket, or 
up to one-half year’s allowance advance.  This pro-rated amount will be required to be paid back 
by the employee if they do not remain employed for the period of time covered by the pro-rated 
amount. 

Approved and adopted this 5th day of April, 2016. 
 
 
             
       __________________________________ 
       Willard S. Cragun, Mayor 



 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson, Recorder 
 
Councilwoman Becraft   
Councilman Dandoy   
Councilman Hilton   
Councilman Tafoya   
Councilwoman Yeoman  



Resolution No. 16-14 
A Resolution of the Roy City Council  

Temporarily Suspending the Master Police Officer Program  
 
Whereas, the Roy City Police Department currently has a Master Police Officer Program; and  
 
Whereas, Roy City Police Administration desires to evaluate the qualifications required for a Roy 
City Police Officer to obtain the rank of Master Police Officer; and 
 
Whereas, Police Administration desire for the Roy City Master Police Officer Program be 
temporarily suspended during the evaluation period. 
 
Now Therefore, be it Resolved that the Roy City Council that the Police Department Master Police 
Officer Program be temporarily suspended. 
 

 
Approved and adopted this 5th day of April, 2016. 
             
       __________________________________ 
       Willard S. Cragun, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson, Recorder 
 
Councilwoman Becraft   
Councilman Dandoy   
Councilman Hilton   
Councilman Tafoya   
Councilwoman Yeoman  



Resolution No. 16-16  
A Resolution of the Roy City Council Designating Roy City West Park as an Area Where 

Orders to Disperse are Authorized and Gang Loitering is Prohibited 
 
WHEREAS, in recent years, criminal street gangs have been able to or have attempted to 
establish control, intimidate others from entering or conceal illegal activities conducted at the 
annual Roy Days Celebration and Festivities; and  
 
WHEREAS, last year Roy Days was held at West Park in Roy City, and 
 
WHEREAS, there were issues with criminal street gangs attempting to establish control, 
intimidate others, or conceal activities last year at West Park during the Roy Days Celebration; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Roy City Council has consulted with persons knowledgeable about the effects 
of gang activity about the effects of gang activity at West Park and during the Roy Days 
Celebration; and  
 
WHEREAS, Utah State Code § 76-9-905 allows for the legislative bodies of municipalities to 
designate certain areas within their respective jurisdictions as areas where orders to disperse are 
authorized and gang loitering is prohibited.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Roy City Council that Roy City West Park is hereby 
designated as an area where orders to disperse are authorized and gang loitering is prohibited, a 
violation of which is subject to the penalties outlined in the Utah State Code.   
 
Approved and adopted this 5th day of April, 2016. 
             
       __________________________________ 
       Willard S. Cragun, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Amy Mortenson, Recorder 
 
Councilwoman Becraft   
Councilman Dandoy   
Councilman Hilton   
Councilman Tafoya   
Councilwoman Yeoman  
 
 
 
 





















Website Redesign Quotes/Information 
 
C133 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: $15,500  
No support 
 
Civic Live 
Cost: $38,000 includes first year of support 
$6,650 per year for years 2-4 
Sight refresh at year 4 
 
Civic Plus 
Cost: $30,716 includes first year of support 
$6,000 per year for years 2-4 
Sight refresh at year 4 
 
DB Inc. 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: $20,000 
$600.00 per month for support and security updates 
$125.00 per hour for website adjustments 
 
E Gov Link 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: $13,050 for year 1 
$3,495 for year 2 
$3,495 for year 3 
 
Few 
Cost: 26,025 
No support or site hosting in this cost 
 
 
Granite Sky Civic  
Cost: $28,067 
$1,500 per year for hosting 
$4,200 per year for support 
$3,150 per year site improvements 
$3,350 content migration  
 
Infobytes 
Cost: $26,351 
$429.00 per month for support 
Sight refresh every 3 years 
 



Jesse James 
Cost: $42,000 
$110.00 per hour for support 
$250.00 per month for sight hosting  
 
Kyte Graphix 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: $49,000 
No support 
No site hosting 
 
Letter 23 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: 31,500 
Free 2 year maintenance 
 
Revize 
Cost: $27,800 for year 1 
$5,900 for year 2 
$5,900 for year 3 
$5,900 for year 4 
 
SEO Werkz 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: $3,300 
$650.00 per month site host/maintenance  
 
Two Oceans Digital 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: $36,350 
$160.00 per month for hosting 
 
Vision Internet 
Cost: $49,030 for year 1 
$7,000 for year 2 
$7,350 for year 3 
$7,717 for year 4 
This company has a page limit 
 
We are Immediate 
This company uses Wordpress which is what we currently use at Roy City 
Cost: $10,450 
$50.00 per month for hosting 
$300.00 per month for maintenance  



POINT PAPER ON 
Roy City Community Based Survey 

Update 29 March 2016 
 
ISSUE: 

Develop a Roy City community survey to gather public input on important issues.  
   

BACKGROUND: 
• Contacted Weber State University to help develop and implement a survey.  
• Collected survey input from multiple sources in an effort to construct a comprehensive 

survey.   
• Developed a map outlining 12 different sections throughout the city. The city and Weber 

State University personnel will need to collect at least 50 survey from each of the 12 sections 
(total of 600) in order to acquire/achieve a 95% statistical accuracy of the general public 
position on specific issues.         

DISCUSSION: 
The city held another meeting with WSU employees on 29 March to discuss the next steps in 
developing and implementing the proposed survey. Here is where we are so far in the 
implementation process.  

• Roy City will be broken out into 12 sections (see attachment 1). We will need 50 plus 
completed surveys from each section in order to achieve the 95% statistical accuracy of the 
general public’s position on specific issues.  

• Attached is a final draft of the proposed survey (see attachment 2). Once the Roy City 
leaders and Council review and approve the survey, those comments will provide back to 
WSU to finalize it.  

• Once completed, WSU will load the survey into their data base and make it ready for 
distribution. The survey will be available both in English and Spanish.  

• To get the approval process with WSU moving, they will need a letter signed by the Mayor 
indicating support for this collaborative agreement.   
o A draft letter was forward to the Mayor for his signature.        

• Weber State University will use their computer systems to collect Roy City Survey inputs. 
Once the approve survey is provided to their IT organization, they will provide to Roy City 
and residents a link to their website.   

• The first round of survey sampling will occur sometime around 17 April and run for 30 days.  
o This will be an "open to every" Roy City residents announcement that will be posted on 

the Roy City Website and Facebook page.  
 We will need to use other social media sites (Facebook, Twitter) to encourage 

residents to access the home page and take the survey.  
 We hope to use the Roy City Newsletter (May/June) to help get the message out.  

o Based on whether or not we get the required statistical numbers from each section, we 
will move to the next phase.  

• The second round of survey sampling will occur sometime around 17 May and run for 2 
weeks.  
o It is planned to use the City's database to send a message with the survey website link to 

Roy City resident's email addresses.  



o From this targeted approach and based on the actual number of survey inputs, the 
city may need to go to the next phase.  

• The third and final round will require volunteers to go door-to-door sometime around the 1st 
of June.  
o Based on the outcomes from rounds 1 and 2, the city plans to target those sections that 

still lack the required survey numbers.  
o The plan includes training the volunteers by WSU personnel before sending them out to 

specific sections with the city.  
 Each two person survey team will be provided specific random sample addresses 

to visit to try to collect the final need survey numbers.  
 The collection process will involve one of three different techniques.  

 As the questions are answered by the resident, the team will collect the 
survey information by writing it down or loading it on an electronic tablet.  

 If the resident does not have time at the moment to complete the survey 
and willing to do it electronically, the team will leave a card with the 
proper link to the website at WSU.   

 If the resident does not have time at the moment to complete the survey, 
the team will provide a hardcopy of the survey and a self-addressed 
envelope to mail back to the city once completed.  

 The city has at least 10 to 15 people at this point who indicated they would like to 
help conduct the survey. 

CONCLUSION: 
Having clear and defined information from the Roy City residents will help leaders in making 
informed decisions.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Here is what is needed by tomorrow (6 April 2016) before noon.  
• Each City Council member and City leader review the survey questionnaire and provide 

feedback to Bob Dandoy of any recommendations, changes, and/or corrections.  
• A sign letter from the Mayor Office requesting/authorizing WSU help in conducting the 

survey.   
 

ATTACHMENT: 
1- Survey Map of Roy City  
2- Draft of Final Roy City Survey  

 
 
  



ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 

 
 
 
 



 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 


	April 5, 2016 City Council Agenda
	March 15, 2016 City Council Minutes
	Andres Olavarrieta
	Robert Jackson Oath of Office
	Stuart Hackworth Oath of Office
	Resolution 16-12 Additional Crossing Guard
	School Crossing Guard
	ResolutionNo16-13 Police Department Uniform Allowance
	ResolutionNo16-14 Suspending Master Officer Program
	Resolution No 16-16 Gang Loitering Prohibited
	Alcoholic Beverage License
	Cemetery Property Acquisition
	Website Redesign Quotes
	Point Paper on Conducting a Survey Update 29 March  2016

